






 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MEETING 
 
 
 

       
 
 
 
 

       
 
 
 
 

MARCH 16, 2009 

1



 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA 
 
BOARD MEETING             STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 
7:00 P.M.                             5606 SOUTH 147th STREET 
                                              MARCH 16, 2009 

AGENDA 
 

A. Call to Order 
 

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection 
 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
C. Roll Call 
 
D. Public Comments on agenda items – This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda 

items only.  Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 
 

E. Routine Matters 
1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes – March 2, 2009 
2. *Approval of Bills 
3. *Receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File 

 
F. Information Items 

1. Superintendent’s Comments 
2. Board Comments/Announcements 

 
G. Unfinished Business: 

 
H. New Business 

1. Approval to Enter into Collective Bargaining Negotiations with the Millard Education Association for 
Nurses 2009-2010 

2. Appointment of Negotiation Team for Nurses Contract 
3. Approval to Enter into Collective Bargaining Negotiations with the Educational Paraprofessional 

Association of Millard 
4. Appointment of Negotiation Team for Paraprofessional Contract 
5. Approval of Job Description 2100.19 – Director of Human Resources 
6. Award Contract for Cather Carpeting 
7. Award Contract for Bryan Paving Project 
8. Approval of Administrators for Hire 
9. Approval of Personnel Actions: Amendment to Continuing Contract(s), Leave(s) of Absence, 

Resignation(s), and New Hire(s) 
10. Negotiations (Executive Session) 
11. Litigation (Executive Session) 
 

I. Reports 
1. Legislative Update 
2. Nutrition and Wellness Committee Report 
 

J. Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar 
1. Town Hall Meeting on Monday, March 23, 2009 at 7 p.m. at Millard South High School, 14905 “Q” 

Street 

2



 

 

 
Agenda 
March 16, 2009 
Page 2 
 
 

2. Special Board of Education Meeting on Tuesday, March 24, 2009 at 12:00 noon at the Don Stroh 
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street 

3. National School Boards Association Conference on April 3-7, 2009 in San Diego, CA 
4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, April 13, 2009 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
5. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, April 20, 2009 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 4, 2009 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration  

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
7. Millard Public Schools Foundation Hall of Fame Banquet on Friday, May 8, at 6:30 p.m. at the Qwest 

Center 
8. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, May 11, 2009 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
9. Employee Recognition Dinner on Wednesday, May 13, 2009 at 5:30 p.m. at the Georgetowne Club 
10. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 18, 2009 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
11. 2009 Graduations will be held on Saturday, May 30, 2009 for Millard West High School at 10 a.m., 

Millard North High School at 1 p.m., and Millard South High School at 4 p.m., at the Civic 
Auditorium 

 
K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.  Please 

make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 

L.  Adjournment:   

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single 
motion.  Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 

3



 

 

.BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA 
 

BOARD MEETING                             STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 
7:00 P.M.                     5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET 
                                           MARCH 16, 2009 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM 

 
A. Call to Order 
 
 The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection 
 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
C. Roll Call 
 
D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on 

agenda items only.  Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President prior to the 
Meeting. 

 
*E.1. Motion by                     , seconded by, ______________, to approve the Board of Education 

Minutes – March 2, 2009.  (See enclosure.) 
 
*E.2. Motion by                     , seconded by                     , to approve the bills.  
 
*E.3.  Motion by                     , seconded by                     , to receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on 

File  (See enclosure.) 
 
F.1. Superintendent’s Comments 
 
F.2. Board Comments/Announcements 
 
H.1. Motion by                     , seconded by, ______________, to approve that the District recognize the 

MEA as the collective bargaining agent for nurses in the District; and further that the District 
meet and confer with the MEA to negotiate the FYE10 employment contract for said employee 
group at times and places mutually agreed to by the parties. (See enclosure.) 

 
H.2. Motion by                     , seconded by, ______________, to that the Board appoint Ken Fossen, 

Duncan Young, Jim Sutfin and Chad Meisgeier for the district’s negotiations team for collective 
bargaining related to the FYE10 employment contract for nurses; and that the Board appoint 
Chad Meisgeier as the lead negotiator for the team. (See enclosure.) 

 
H.3. Motion by                     , seconded by, ______________, to approve that the District recognize the 

EPAM as the collective bargaining agent for paraprofessionals in the District; and further that the 
District meet and confer with the EPAM to negotiate the FYE10 employment contract for said 
employee group at times and places mutually agreed to by the parties.  (See enclosure.) 

 
H.4. Motion by                     , seconded by, ______________, to approve that the Board appoint Kirby 

Elstiste, Jim Sutfin and Chad Meisgeier for the district’s negotiations team for collective 
bargaining related to the FYE10 employment contract for educational paraprofessionals; and that 
the Board appoint Chad Meisgeier as the lead negotiator for the team.  (See enclosure.) 

 
 

4



 

 

Administrative Memorandum 
March 16, 2009 
Page 2 
 
 
H.5. Motion by                     , seconded by, ______________, to approve Job Description 2100.19 – 

Director of Human Resources (See enclosure.) 
 
H.6 Motion by                     , seconded by, ______________, that the contract for Cather Carpeting 

project be awarded to Floors, Inc. in the amount of $90,115 and that the associate superintendent 
for general administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all contract related to 
such project.  (See enclosure.) 

 
H.7.  Motion by                     , seconded by, ______________, to approve: (1) that the low bid for the 

summer paving project at Bryan Elementary School be rejected due to said contractor’s inability 
to meet completion timelines on other projects; (2) that the contract for such project be awarded 
to US Asphalt Company in the calculated amount of $375,594.30 (with said amount reflecting the 
base bid only); and (3) that the associated superintendent for general administration be authorized 
and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project (See enclosure.) 

 
H.8.  Motion by                     , seconded by, ______________, to approve administrators for hire: 

Bethany Case, Principal at Disney Elementary, Joycilyn Rozelle, Principal at Norris Elementary, 
and Rick Hook, Assistant Principal/ Activities and Athletics Director at Millard West High 
School (See enclosure.) 

 
H.9.  Motion by _____________, seconded by ________________, to approve Personnel Actions: 

Amendment to Continuing Contract(s), Leave(s) of Absence, Resignation(s), and New Hire(s).  
(See enclosures.) 

 
H.10.  Motion by _____________, seconded by ________________, to go into Executive Session for 

the purpose of Negotiations 
 
H.11. Motion by _____________, seconded by ________________, to go into Executive Session for 

the purpose of Litigation. 
 
I.  Report 

1. Legislative Update 
2. Nutrition and Wellness committee Report 

 
J.  Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar. 

1. Town Hall Meeting on Monday, March 23, 2009 at 7 p.m. at Millard South High School, 
14905 “Q” Street 

2. Special Board of Education Meeting on Tuesday, March 24, 2009 at 12:00 noon at the Don 
Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street 

3. National School Boards Association Conference on April 3-7, 2009 in San Diego, CA 
4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, April 13, 2009 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
5. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, April 20, 2009 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 4, 2009 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration  
Center, 5606 South 147th Street 

7. Millard Public Schools Foundation Hall of Fame Banquet on Friday, May 8, at 6:30 p.m. at 
the Qwest Center 

 

5



 

 

Administrative Memorandum 
March 16, 2009 
Page 3 
 
 

8. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, May 11, 2009 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh 
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street 

9. Employee Recognition Dinner on Wednesday, May 13, 2009 at 5:30 p.m. at the Georgetowne 
Club 

10. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 18, 2009 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh 
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street 

11. 2009 Graduations will be held on Saturday, May 30, 2009 for Millard West High School at 
10 a.m., Millard North High School at 1 p.m., and Millard South High School at 4 p.m., at the 
Civic Auditorium 

 
K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.  Please 

make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 
 
L.  Adjournment 
 
All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single 
motion.  Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 

6



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO 17 

 
A meeting was held of the Board of Education of the School District No. 17, in the County of Douglas in the State of 
Nebraska.  The meeting was convened in open and public session at 7:00 p.m., Monday, March 2, 2009, at the Don Stroh 
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street. 
 
 Present:  Michael Pate, Dave Anderson, Linda Poole, Brad Burwell, and Julie Kannas 
 
 Absent:  Mike Kennedy 
 
Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Daily Record on Friday, February 27, 2009; a 
copy of the publication is being attached to these minutes.  Notice of this meeting was given to all members of the Board 
of Education and a copy of their Acknowledgment of Receipt of Notice and the agenda are attached to these minutes.  
Availability of the agenda was communicated in advance notice and in the notice of the Board of Education of this 
meeting.  All proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance of the 
public. 
 
At 7:00 p.m. Michael Pate announced the public meeting Act is posted on the wall and available for public inspection.  
Mr. Pate asked everyone to say the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll call was taken and members present were:  Michael Pate, Dave Anderson, Linda Poole, Brad Burwell, and Julie 
Kannas.  Absent was Mike Kennedy. 
 
Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Julie Kannas, to excuse Mike Kennedy from the meeting, upon roll call vote, all 
members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Brad Burwell, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve the Board of Education Minutes – February 16, 2009, 
approve the bills, and receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  
Motion carried. 
 
Employees of the Month for March were Jane Pille, CADRE Associate and Jessy Erdman, special education preschool 
paraprofessional at Reeder Elementary. 
 
Showcase highlighted Nebraska Visual Arts students (7-12), Nebraska Young Artists, All State Musicians at the Middle 
Schools, and UNO Middle School Honor Choir students. 
 
Superintendent Comments: 
 

1. Last Thursday was the last meeting with the PTO and secondary building representatives.  Only five schools 
were represented.  Next year these meeting may be held in a different way to engage the schools. 
 

2. The next Business Advisory meeting will be held on Friday, March 13, 2009 at 7:30 a.m.  The agenda for the 
meeting will be out soon. 
 

3. The next Town Hall meeting will be held at Millard North on Monday, March 9, 2009 at 7 p.m. and the last 
one will be held at Millard South on March 23, 2009 at 7 p.m.  Dr. Lutz encouraged members of the PTO and 
secondary building representatives to attend the Town Hall meetings. 

 
4. The National School Boards Association Conference will be April 3, 2009 thru April 7, 2009. 
 
5. There are rough numbers from the Federal Government in regards to the stimulus funding.  When exact 

information is provided to the District it will be sent to board members. 
 
 
 

7



Board of Education Minutes 
March 2, 2009 
Page 2 
 
 
Board Comments: 
 
Brad Burwell reported he has been working with a group of high ability learners at Reeder Elementary, and talking about 
economic issues.  He said they were a bright group of students. 
 
Mr. Burwell said he will be participating in the speech interviews at Millard South High School 
 
Mr. Burwell gave an update on the Learning Community Coordinating Council to the PTO and secondary building 
representative last Thursday.  The Council has put out a public notice for a questionnaire for criteria to be followed for an 
attorney firm, and for an accounting firm, and they will be up for approval at the next meeting.  The budgets for FYE 
2009 and 2010 will be submitted for approval, and the budgets will be presented to the Unicameral Appropriations 
Committee on March 17, 2009.  A facilities proposal will also be submitted, which includes five locations: ESU #3, ESU 
#19, two locations at Metropolitan Community College, and at the UNO Alumni Center.  The March 19, 2009 meeting 
will be held at the UNO Alumni Center. 
 
Mr. Burwell proposed at a sub-committee about joining the Nebraska Association of School Boards.  Mr. Burwell said he 
talked with John Bonaiuto, Executive Director of NASB, and Dr. Bonaiuto will take this request to his NASB Board.  
Mrs. Burwell thought there would be services provided by the Nebraska Association of School Boards that would be 
helpful to the Learning Community. 
 
Mr. Burwell said he will not be at the Town Hall Meeting on March 9, 2009, because he would be out of town. 
 
Linda Poole thanked all of the staff members for all they do for the students in Millard in regards to Teacher Recognition 
Day.  Mrs. Poole said she believes that the staff is certainly what makes the district as great as it is. 
 
Mrs. Poole said was attended the Town Hall meeting and the PTO meeting last week.   Mr. Poole said both meeting went 
very well, and she thanked Dr. Lutz, and Brad Burwell did a great job on his presentation. 
 
Mrs. Poole reported that she recently attended the Technical Advisory Committee on Assessment Meeting with the 
Nebraska Department of Education.  Today she spoke before the State Board of Education to give an update on what the 
task force is doing with whole statewide assessment process. 
 
She reported the reading and language arts test will be piloted this April, and will be implemented next year.  Math will be 
going through the pilot process next year, and then implemented in 2011.  The tests will be given to grades 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 
and 11.  The reading and language arts tests will be given in two different ways, one being taken online, and others will be 
using a paper pencil test.  Millard will probably do this test online. 
 
Mrs. Poole said the next meeting of the Assessment Advisory will be held in July. 
 
Dave Anderson announced that there will be a Nebraska Association of School Boards board meeting on March 20, 2009.  
He said he would be looking forward to working with the Learning Community Coordinating Council discussion. 
 
Mr. Anderson thanked Joannie Wilson at Millard North Middle School for hosting him for Principal for a Day.  He said it 
was a great day and he wanted to learn about the International Baccalaureate program at this level. 
 
Mr. Anderson also attended “One Disney Night”, and expressed his appreciation to Mark Schultze, principal at Disney, 
for the event.  He reported that the building is transformed into the book that has been read by the Disney families, and it 
is a great event. 
 
Mr. Anderson attended the New Frontier Genetics Fair at Millard South High School last week.  All of the students did a 
nice job. 
 

8



Board of Education Minutes 
March 2, 2009 
Page 3 
 
 
Mr. Anderson said he will be reading at Black Elk this week, and will be at the speech interviews at Millard South High 
School on Wednesday. 
 
Julie Kannas expressed her appreciation to all staff members for all of their efforts in regards to Teacher Recognition Day 
on Tuesday. 
 
Mrs. Kannas thanked the administration and other board members during the Town Hall meeting at Millard West High 
School. 
 
Mike Pate announced the Millard Public Schools Foundation is still looking for sponsorships for the annual golf 
tournament.  He said slots are filling up fast, and it is becoming a very popular event. 
 
Mr. Pate extended his congratulation to all teachers for all they do for the students of Millard Public Schools. 
 
Mr. Pate noted that in light of the struggles of the country, at this time, there seems to be a need to do a better job of 
providing information on financial literacy.  There is a need to make the students aware of the importance of finance. 
 
Brittney Albin, student representative from Millard South High School, and Emily Nowell, student representative from 
Millard West High School reported on academic and athletic activities that have happened at their respective building in 
the last few weeks. 
 
Julie Kannas provided the final reading of Policy 6110 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Written Curriculum – 
Content Standards.  Motion by Julie Kannas, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve Policy 6110 Curriculum, Instruction, 
and Assessment – Written Curriculum – Content Standards, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Brad Burwell, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve the Strategic Plan, upon roll call vote, all members voted 
aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Brad Burwell, seconded by Dave Anderson, that the District proceed with the proposed Excel Building Phase I 
Renovation Project and that such project include the option related to space for the District’s warehouse, upon roll call 
vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Julie Kannas, seconded by Dave Anderson, that the District approve the 2-year extension of the District’s 
transportation contract with MOEC and Laidlaw (now First Student) as provided in the AMENDMENT TO 
AGREEMENT as submitted, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Brad Burwell, that the District’s administration and financial advisor be authorized 
and directed to proceed with preparations for the issuance of refunding bonds as determined by the financial advisor and 
that the board schedule a special meeting for Tuesday, March 24, 2009 at 12:00 noon for the purpose of issuing such 
bonds, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Julie Kannas, to approve Rule 6110.1 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment 
– Written Curriculum – Content Standards, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Brad Burwell, to approve Millard Public Schools Language Arts Standards and 
Indicators for PK-12, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Brad Burwell, to approve the Memorandum of Understanding with Metropolitan 
Community College in support of the Career Academy Program, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion 
carried. 
 

9





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Millard Public Schools 
March 16, 2009 

 

11



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 16, 2009

Date: 3/11/09

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
AMERICAN EXPRESS011651300157 3,916.19 
BELLEVUE WEST HIGH SCHOOL133636300158 185.00 
CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL065420300159 1,625.00 
FOLLETT SOFTWARE COMPANY136106300161 3,083.62 
BARBARA FURST135218300162 250.00 
HARRY A KOCH COMPANY056820300163 25,221.61 
INTERNATIONAL BACCALAUREATE102451300164 1,785.00 
LINCOLN SOUTHEAST HIGH SCHOOL100006300165 123.50 
NE DEPT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES131412300168 300.00 
NEBRASKA STATE BANDMASTERS ASSN067027300169 256.00 
PAYFLEX SYSTEMS USA INC071891300171 100.00 
PETTY CASH/TECHNOLOGY133227300172 161.58 
QWEST090673300173 115.23 
REE ENTERPRISES INC137098300174 46,275.00 
TOSHIBA AMERICA INFO SYS INC131446300175 91.00 
STEPHEN W. VENTEICHER107354300176 468.75 
WAVERLY HIGH SCHOOL-DISTRICT 145137365300177 56.00 
CITY OF OMAHA025197300178 77,545.43 
ALLIED OIL & SUPPLY, INC.011185300179 542.52 
BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT019111300181 3,066.53 
BLAIR COMMUNITY SCHOOLS132607300182 120.00 
CHRISTOPHER COLLING107454300184 150.00 
CONSORTIUM FOR SCHOOL NETWORKING134374300186 1,000.00 
CONSORTIUM FOR SCHOOL NETWORKING134374300187 530.00 
ANGELA M DIEHM133261300189 437.50 
FERRELLGAS106956300192 33.66 
FIRST NATIONAL BANK VISA106773300193 10,753.75 
HOUGHTON MIFFLIN HARCOURT PUB CO049650300195 864.90 
CLAUDIA BROWN JACKMAN137369300196 80.00 
KONICA MINOLTA PRINTING SOLUTIONS134607300197 2,712.05 
MILLARD LUMBER INC065400300198 14.05 
NATIONAL FORENSIC LEAGUE099928300199 355.00 
BRIAN L NELSON107732300201 43.75 
NORTH MIDDLE SCHOOL130091300202 297.00 
OMAHA WORLD HERALD  (EDUC)071053300204 1,032.30 
RENAISSANCE HOTEL OPERATING CO137367300206 862.87 
SOUTHWEST AIRLINES136013300209 458.10 
LAXMI REPUBLIC HOTEL PARTNERSHIP137368300210 725.65 
MICHAEL L SWANSON137104300211 250.00 
AAHPERD011241300224 25.00 
AMI GROUP INC102430300225 10,382.34 
RAYMOND J SAVARD136956300226 2,500.00 
AVIS RENT A CAR SYSTEM INC135330300227 605.04 
DONNA BARTEK135319300229 35.00 
BRIAN F BEGLEY107540300230 484.85 
BERINGER CIACCIO DENNELL MABREY133480300231 1,647.30 

12



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 16, 2009

Date: 3/11/09

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
ROSE M BERNSTEIN133910300232 31.00 
JAIME A BIZAL135014300233 18.82 
CHANDA R BRULAND136552300234 58.38 
MELISSA K BYINGTON134198300235 1,066.02 
CONNECTIVITY SOLUTIONS MFG INC133818300236 1,348.13 
CONOCOPHILLIPS133617300237 6,587.65 
CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING106893300240 48.98 
DEEP ROCK WATER130339300242 41.87 
EDWARD D DUELLO131002300245 386.12 
PAMELA S EHLY132892300246 47.90 
WARREN K ELTISTE038217300247 295.00 
SHARON G EPSTEIN131416300248 386.69 
FEDERAL EXPRESS040450300249 101.05 
LESLIE ELISE FELICI137266300250 220.64 
GALAXY CABLE INC107025300252 2,555.58 
GREAT PLAINS BUSINESS FORMS044978300253 186.50 
GREATER OMAHA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE044982300254 364.00 
DIANE F HANSLER047846300255 17.50 
HAPPY CAB COMPANY INC047853300257 13,452.62 
HY-VEE INC133397300260 1,150.75 
HY-VEE INC132878300261 418.70 
HY-VEE INC135004300262 387.22 
HY-VEE INC049851300263 1,031.95 
HY-VEE INC049850300264 1,542.66 
JACQUELINE K JACOX054159300265 128.21 
NANCY A JOHNSTON059573300266 283.21 
KAY KRONHOLM056995300267 375.00 
KRAIG J LOFQUIST133758300270 275.00 
MICHAEL J LONGACRE135754300271 110.32 
MILLARD WEST HIGH SCHOOL065443300274 548.24 
BRIAN R MONAGHAN137378300275 44.40 
MICHAEL L NEEMANN068951300277 366.90 
SUSAN E NELSON135913300278 54.36 
LYNNE NEWVILLE069561300279 808.18 
NEXTEL PARTNERS INC109843300280 969.98 
NILA J NIELSEN106326300281 175.62 
ANGELO D PASSARELLI108098300282 341.00 
DAVID PETTIT136475300284 14.93 
MATTHEW K REGA133191300285 109.00 
BETH M REITZ132891300286 68.36 
SAFEWAY TRANSPORTATION LLC136533300288 15,452.75 
CHARLENE S SNYDER107093300291 12.99 
KENT E SPEER082438300292 65.22 
JOHN M STEYER134443300293 137.90 
JAMES V SUTFIN084959300294 25.29 
TRINA A SWITZER132191300295 55.24 

13



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 16, 2009

Date: 3/11/09

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
DAVIS EQUIPMENT CORPORATION134054300296 9.56 
JENNIFER L VEST136318300298 28.84 
YOUNG & WHITE096200300299 22,079.31 
PAUL  R ZOHLEN136855300300 370.96 

276,224.57 Total for GENERAL FUND
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOL CLEARING ACCT13627921665 267.00 
BULLER FIXTURE COMPANY01006121666 188.00 
CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING10689321667 14.32 
LINDA M DOYLE01017821668 24.75 
ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING & EQPT CO03810021669 428.15 
CINDY L GAYDOS13096521670 2.75 
ENCORE ONE LLC13598321671 182.30 
ROWAN W LANG10222921672 155.65 
LINDA S MASON13732921673 1.49 
EDRIE K PEARCE10244521674 330.01 
JUDY P PETERS13134821675 2.75 
PRAIRIE MECHANICAL CORP13183521676 234.00 
DEB RINGER13090321677 47.96 
MARK P ROSENTHAL13715721678 16.23 
JUDITH H SCHULTZ13135021679 3.41 
KATHERINE L SIX13505721680 32.78 
RYAN G BISHOP13597221681 50.63 
AUSTIN BURDEN13573621682 30.38 
SHAWN M CASTONGUAY13699721683 70.88 
MADELEINE R COLBERT13716021684 33.75 
RAFAEL DIAZ13699921685 101.25 
MARLEY J FLEMING13700021686 60.75 
GRACE GREENWOOD13402421687 6.75 
SEAN M HENDERSON13716121688 33.75 
ZACKERY A KAPFER13630421689 77.63 
TAYLOR M KIM13716221690 27.00 
NICHOLAS T KING13566821691 40.50 
ANNA KLOSTERMAN13202921692 106.31 
TROY P KOSTAL13581321693 20.25 
MICHAEL KRMPOTIC13737621694 189.01 
WILLIAM E LANG13203221695 113.06 
ANDREW E LUCAS JR13725121696 20.25 
TAYLOR J MARSHALL13657021697 13.50 
CHRISTOPHER MCEVOY13318021698 70.88 
RONALD A NEWTON JR13402521699 113.06 
LUCAS PELSTER13630721700 40.50 
TIMOTHY POYNTER II13716321701 27.00 
COURTNEY K RIETZ13630621702 20.25 
ADRIANA D ROBINSON13716421703 33.75 
TREY A SCHULTZ13700221704 40.50 
JESSICA L SHANNO13716521705 13.50 

14



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 16, 2009

Date: 3/11/09

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
ELIZABETH VACANTI13202821706 114.75 
BRIAN A VICARS13567421707 40.50 
AUSTIN K WILSON13700321708 40.50 

3,482.39 Total for FOOD SERVICE 
FUND

CONNECTIVITY SOLUTIONS MFG INC133818300236 13,840.47 

13,840.47 Total for SPECIAL BUILDING 
FUND

BERINGER CIACCIO DENNELL MABREY133480300231 5,541.47 
CONSTRUCT INC135287300238 272,046.60 
COX COMMUNICATIONS INC108436300239 89.78 
DLR GROUP INC107232300243 240.00 
UPLAND CONSTRUCTION CO106653300297 403,256.00 

681,173.85 Total for CONSTRUCTION 
FUND

INTERNATIONAL BACCALAUREATE102451300164 1,500.00 
OMAHA PERFORMING ARTS SOCIETY135792300170 534.00 
AMERICAN ASSOC OF PHYSICS TEACHERS135167300180 50.00 
CONCORDIA UNIVERSITY106184300185 594.21 
DOANE COLLEGE135201300190 585.00 
FIRST NATIONAL BANK VISA106773300193 2,343.64 
NEBRASKA SCHOOL PUBLIC RELATIONS137366300200 25.00 
JULIA NOYES131662300203 1,250.00 
TESOL REGISTRATION SERVICES133491300212 295.00 
JANET L DAHLGAARD131483300241 14.44 
DAVID S FRITSON136825300251 73.53 
JEAN M HASTINGS136458300258 232.90 
BAILEY HEMPHILL135616300259 157.50 
HY-VEE INC049850300264 62.18 
SUSAN N MARLATT133505300272 36.20 
LISA A MASID SCHEPPERS108172300273 90.34 
NILA J NIELSEN106326300281 41.74 
ANGELA J PETERSON137009300283 88.35 
SHELLEY L SCHMITZ137012300289 93.25 
JULIA C SINIARD136137300290 295.56 

8,362.84 Total for GRANT FUND
COVENTRY HEALTH & LIFE INS CO136587300160 115,859.76 
MUTUAL OF OMAHA COMPANIES099045300167 121,922.52 

237,782.28 Total for 
BAHR VERMEER HAECKER ARCHITECTS135245300228 8,850.00 
LAMP RYNEARSON ASSOCIATES INC058775300268 12,000.00 
MORRISSEY ENGINEERING INC134532300276 4,400.00 

25,250.00 Total for DEPRECIATION 
FUND

SUSAN M MURPHY136535300166 1,000.00 
ARLA JO CLAUSEN137370300183 341.64 
JOHN D'ARCY032071300188 150.00 
KELLY ERLANDSON137371300191 265.00 

15



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 16, 2009

Date: 3/11/09

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
TWYLA M HANSEN137372300194 265.00 
AMY PLETTNER-LIND137373300205 273.00 
DOUG RUZICKA108435300207 595.00 
SAM'S CLUB DIRECT081630300208 237.90 
DONNA BARTEK135319300229 105.00 
WADE S DOUGHERTY137267300244 60.00 
MARK LARSON133206300269 50.00 

3,342.54 Total for ACTIVITY FUND

1,249,458.94 Report Total               

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

Agenda Item: Enter into Collective Bargaining Negotiations with the Millard 
Education Association for the 2009-10 Contract. 

 
Meeting Date: March 16, 2009 
 
Department General Administration / Human Resources 
 
Title and Brief 
Description: Request to commence Collective Bargaining with the MEA. 
 
Action Desired: Approval 
 
Background: The Millard Education Association represents the nurses in 

collective bargaining matters.  The current bargaining 
agreement expires July 31, 2009.  Under Nebraska law, either 
party (the District or the Union) may request the 
commencement of collective bargaining.  A copy of the letter 
from MEA requesting the commencement of bargaining for the 
FYE10 contract is attached. 

 
Options/Alternatives 
Considered: N/A 
 
Recommendations: It is recommended that the District recognize the MEA as the 

collective bargaining agent for nurses in the District; and 
further that the District meet and confer with the MEA to 
negotiate the FYE10 employment contract for said employee 
group at times and places mutually agreed to by the parties. 

 
Strategic Plan 
Reference: N/A 
 
Timeline: Immediate 
 
Responsible 
Persons: Chad Meisgeier, Ken Fossen, Duncan Young, Jim Sutfin 
 
 
Superintendent’s Signature:  ______________________________________________ 
 

76

sphelps
New Stamp



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Agenda Item: Appointment of Negotiations Team for Nurses Contract. 
 
Meeting Date: March 16, 2009 
 
Department General Administration / Human Resources 
 
Title and Brief Appointment of Negotiations Team for the nurses’ contract –  
Description: The designation of the members who will serve as the District’s 

representatives during the collective bargaining process for nurses. 
 
Action Desired: Approval 
 
Background: Nebraska law provides school employees the right to bargain 

collectively with the school district in certain matters related to their 
employment contract.  The association that represents these 
employees has a team of members who meet with a similar team 
appointed by the district.  The District’s team has the task of 
negotiating the proposed terms of the collective bargaining 
agreement; however, final approval for the agreement rests with the 
board of education. 

 
 It is the administration’s recommendation that the district’s team this 

year be comprised of Ken Fossen, Duncan Young, Jim Sutfin and 
Chad Meisgeier, with Chad Meisgeier serving as the lead negotiator 
for the team. 

 
Options/Alternatives 
Considered: The Board could appoint different members to the team. 
 
Recommendations: It is recommended that the Board appoint Ken Fossen, Duncan 

Young, Jim Sutfin and Chad Meisgeier for the district’s negotiations 
team for collective bargaining related to the FYE10 employment 
contract for nurses; and that the Board appoint Chad Meisgeier as the 
lead negotiator for the team.   

 
Strategic Plan 
Reference: N/A 
 
Timeline: Immediate 
 
Responsible 
Persons: Chad Meisgeier, Ken Fossen, Duncan Young, and Jim Sutfin 
 
Superintendent’s Signature:  ______________________________________________ 
 

77

sphelps
New Stamp



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

Agenda Item: Enter into Collective Bargaining Negotiations with the 
Educational Paraprofessional Association of Millard 
(“EPAM”) for the 2009-10 Contract. 

 
Meeting Date: March 16, 2009 
 
Department General Administration / Human Resources 
 
Title and Brief Request to commence Collective Bargaining with the  
Description: Educational Paraprofessional Association of Millard. 
 
Action Desired: Approval 
 
Background: The Educational Paraprofessional Association of Millard 

represents the paraprofessionals in collective bargaining 
matters.  The current bargaining agreement expires July 31, 
2009.  Under Nebraska law, either party (the District or the 
Union) may request the commencement of collective 
bargaining.  A copy of the letter from EPAM requesting the 
commencement of bargaining for the FYE10 contract is 
attached. 

 
Options/Alternatives 
Considered: N/A 
 
Recommendations: It is recommended that the District recognize the EPAM as the 

collective bargaining agent for paraprofessionals in the 
District; and further that the District meet and confer with the 
EPAM to negotiate the FYE10 employment contract for said 
employee group at times and places mutually agreed to by the 
parties. 

 
Strategic Plan 
Reference: N/A 
 
Timeline: Immediate 
 
Responsible 
Persons: Chad Meisgeier, Jim Sutfin, and Kirby Eltiste 
 
 
Superintendent’s Signature:  ______________________________________________ 
 

78

sphelps
New Stamp



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Agenda Item: Appointment of Negotiations Team for Paraprofessionals’ Contract. 
 
Meeting Date: March 16, 2009 
 
Department General Administration / Human Resources 
 
Title and Brief Appointment of Negotiations Team for the educational 
Description: paraprofessionals  contract – The designation of the members who 

will serve as the District’s representatives during the collective 
bargaining process for educational paraprofessionals. 

 
Action Desired: Approval 
 
Background: Nebraska law provides school employees the right to bargain 

collectively with the school district in certain matters related to their 
employment contract.  The association that represents these 
employees has a team of members who meet with a similar team 
appointed by the district.  The District’s team has the task of 
negotiating the proposed terms of the collective bargaining 
agreement; however, final approval for the agreement rests with the 
board of education. 

 
 It is the administration’s recommendation that the district’s team this 

year be comprised of Kirby Elstiste, Jim Sutfin and Chad Meisgeier, 
with Chad Meisgeier serving as the lead negotiator for the team. 

 
Options/Alternatives 
Considered: The Board could appoint different members to the team. 
 
Recommendations: It is recommended that the Board appoint Kirby Elstiste, Jim Sutfin 

and Chad Meisgeier for the district’s negotiations team for collective 
bargaining related to the FYE10 employment contract for 
educational paraprofessionals; and that the Board appoint Chad 
Meisgeier as the lead negotiator for the team.   

 
Strategic Plan 
Reference: N/A 
 
Timeline: Immediate 
 
Responsible 
Persons: Chad Meisgeier, Kirby Elstiste, and Jim Sutfin 
 
Superintendent’s Signature:  ______________________________________________ 
 

79

sphelps
New Stamp



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Agenda Item: Administrator Job Description Change

Meeting Date: March 16, 2009

Department Human Resources

Title and Brief
Description: We are completing the examination and updating of the job descriptions (2000

series).

Action Desired: Change Rule 2100.19

Background: This rule (job description) needs to be reviewed for changes in Title and
description.

Options/Alternatives
Considered: N/A

Recommendations: Change Rule 2100.19

Strategic Plan
Reference: N/A

Implications of
Adoption/Rejection: N/A

Timeline: We will continue to bring job descriptions from the 2000 series to you this year.

Responsible
Persons: Jim Sutfin

Superintendent’s Signature: ______________________________________________

80

sphelps
New Stamp



Administrator Job Description 2100.19

Title: Director of Human Resources Personnel

Reports to: Associate Superintendent Executive Director of Human Resources

General Summary: Supports the educational programs and services of the District by developing and coordinating
those phases of the personnel program which include: recruitment, selection, assignment, retention and evaluation of
staff, data processing, record keeping, contracts and certification.

Essential Functions:

I. Coordinates the recruiting, interviewing, selecting, assigning, retaining, evaluating, and dismissing of
teachers, professional/technical staff, paraprofessionals, secretaries, custodial/maintenance, food
service, substitute teachers and other assigned staff. (35%)

II. Assists in determining the personnel needs for the District. Maintains contact with all departments and
schools in planning and anticipating personnel needs of the school program. (10%)

III. Assists in the preparation and administration of the human resources budget. (5%)

IV. Coordinates the tracking of employee retention. (10%)

V. Coordinates employment contracts, and teacher certification including alternative certification methods
and programs. (5%)

VI. Assists with the submission of all district, state and federal personnel reports. (510%)

VII. Develops, maintains and updates the Human Resources web page and online application process. (5%)

VIII. Assists and evaluates the work of principals and other staff as assigned by the Superintendent. (5%)

IX. Attends all Board of Education and Cabinet meetings. (5%)

X. Assists the Director of Employee Relations in the Human Resource Information Systems. (3%)

XI. Assumes other responsibilities delegated by the Associate Superintendent Executive Director for
Human Resources. (5%)

XII. Assists in the supervision of teacher and paraprofessionals substitutes, as well as day-to-day
assignments. (5%)

XIII. Assists in the training of cooperating teachers. (1%)

XIV. Other duties as assigned by the Superintendent. (1%)

Qualifications:

1. Education Level: A doctoral degree from an approved institution with a major in educational administration
or the accepted equivalent is preferred; a six-year specialist degree is required.

81



2. Certification or Licensure: A Nebraska Administrative and Supervisory Certificate with the appropriate
endorsement.

3. Experience desired: Four years of successful experience in personnel administration is preferred, three
years of administrative experience is required.

4. Other requirements: Ability to work with individuals in the development and implementation of district
recruitment and selection program and to prepare reports and project staff needs of the district.

Special Requirements:
Occasional Frequent Constant

1 - 32% 33 - 66% 67% +
1. Standing ..................................................................................... X
2. Walking ........................................................... …………………………………X
3 Sitting ........................................................... …………………………………X
4. Lifting 25 lb max. ............................................................. X
5. Carrying 50 feet ................................................................... X
6. Pushing / Pulling ................................................................................ X
7. Climbing / Balancing.......................................................................... X
8. Stooping / Kneeling / Crouching / Crawling ...................................... X
9. Reaching / Handling........................................................................... X
10. Speaking / Hearing ....................……………………………………………………………………………X
11. Seeing / depth perception / color…………………………………………………………………………...X

The statements herein are intended to describe the general nature and level of work being performed by employees
assigned to this classification. They are not intended to be construed as an exhaustive list of all responsibilities,
duties, and skills required of personnel so classified. Responsibilities and duties assigned are at the discretion of the
supervisor (or superintendent).

Employee Signature: _____________________________________________ Date: _________________

Supervisor Signature: _____________________________________________ Date: _________________

Approved: June 5, 2000 Millard Public Schools
Revised: April 19, 2004; September 4, 2007; September 15, 2008 Omaha, Nebraska

82



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Award of Contract for Cather Carpeting 
 
MEETING DATE: March 16, 2009 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Award of Contract for Cather Carpeting – the receiving of bids and the awarding 

of the summer project for carpeting at Cather Elementary School. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval     x         Discussion             Information Only                                      .       
 
BACKGROUND: This is one of the summer projects previously presented to the board. 
 
 Copies of the architect’s recommendation letter and the bid tab are attached for 

your information. 
  
 
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for Cather Carpeting project be awarded to 

Floors, Inc. in the amount of $90,115 and that the associate superintendent for 
general administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all contract 
related to such project. 

 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: Immediate 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Nelson Link (BCDM architects), Ed Rockwell (Gen. Mgr. Support Services) and 

Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

83

sphelps
New Stamp



84



85



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Award of Contract for Bryan Paving Project 
 
MEETING DATE: March 16, 2009 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Award of Contract for Bryan Paving Project – the review of bids and the awarding 

of the summer paving project at Bryan Elementary School. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval      x        Discussion             Information Only                                      .       
 
BACKGROUND: This is one of the summer projects previously discussed with and approved by the 

board. 
 
 Copies of the engineer’s recommendation letter and the bid tab are attached for 

review.  [Note:  The administration concurs with the Engineer’s recommendation 
to reject the low bid.] 

 
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended as follows:  (1) that the low bid for the summer paving project 

at Bryan Elementary School be rejected due to said contractor’s inability to meet 
completion timelines on other projects; (2) that the contract for such project be 
awarded to US Asphalt Company in the calculated amount of $375,594.30 (with 
said amount reflecting the base bid only); and (3) that the associated 
superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to execute any 
and all documents related to such project. 

 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: Immediate 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Brett Wawers and Scott Oswald (Lamp, Rynearson & Associates), Ed Rockwell 

(Gen. Mgr. Support Services) and Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General 
Administration) 

 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

86

sphelps
New Stamp



87



88



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS-BRYAN ELEMENTARY
PARKING LOT
LRA JOB NO. 0108049.01-021
ENGINEER: SCOTT OSWALD/SCOTT LOOS
BID DATE 03/03/09
PAGE 1 OF 8

ITEM 

NO. DESCRIPTION

UNIT 

PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

1
CLEARING AND GRUBBING 
GENERAL 1 LS 21,900.00 21,900.00$     4,400.00$    4,400.00$       4,000.00$     4,000.00$        1,900.00$   1,900.00$       17,025.00$    17,025.00$       

2 GRADING AND SHAPING 1 LS 9,500.00 9,500.00 4,680.00 4,680.00 2,200.00 2,200.00 12,230.00 12,230.00 1,820.00 1,820.00
3 SAW CUT - FULL DEPTH 80 LF 3.00 240.00 3.35 268.00 3.83 306.40 3.50 280.00 3.40 272.00

4
REMOVE AND DISPOSE OF 
PAVEMENT 8,350 SY 3.25 27,137.50 3.70 30,895.00 3.10 25,885.00 3.15 26,302.50 2.56 21,376.00

5

REMOVE, SALVAGE AND 
REINSTALL CHAIN LINK FENCE & 
GATE 90 LF 9.00 810.00 13.40 1,206.00 15.00 1,350.00 17.85 1,606.50 14.10 1,269.00

6
REMOVE AND DISPOSE OF 
FLAG POLE & FOOTING 1 LS 960.00 960.00 238.00 238.00 150.00 150.00 840.00 840.00 5.00 5.00

7
REMOVE, SALVAGE AND 
REINSTALL BENCH 6 EA 300.00 1,800.00 280.00 1,680.00 663.00 3,978.00 400.00 2,400.00 74.00 444.00

8
REMOVE, SALVAGE AND 
REINSTALL BICYCLE RACKS 1 LS 375.00 375.00 822.00 822.00 1,781.00 1,781.00 250.00 250.00 357.00 357.00

9

REMOVE AND DISPOSE OF 
BASKETBALL 
GOAL/BACKBOARD & FOOTING 4 EA 100.00 400.00 183.00 732.00 389.00 1,556.00 420.00 1,680.00 63.50 254.00

10 REMOVE AND SALVAGE SIGN 12 EA 30.00 360.00 36.80 441.60 62.00 744.00 75.00 900.00 19.00 228.00

11
REMOVE AND REPLACE FIBER 
OPTIC PULL BOX 1 EA 836.00 836.00 794.00 794.00 848.54 848.54 800.00 800.00 836.00 836.00

12
REMOVE AND REPLACE 
UNSUITABLE MATERIAL 200 CY 10.00 2,000.00 16.40 3,280.00 6.58 1,316.00 15.75 3,150.00 12.10 2,420.00

13 SUBGRADE PREPARATION 8,425 SY 1.38 11,626.50 1.35 11,373.75 1.91 16,091.75 1.30 10,952.50 1.15 9,688.75

14
CONSTRUCT 8" PC CONCRETE 
PAVEMENT 15 SY 29.17 437.55 34.50 517.50 34.22 513.30 33.00 495.00 41.00 615.00

15
CONSTRUCT 7" PC CONCRETE 
PAVEMENT 7,300 SY 20.00 146,000.00 27.90 203,670.00 26.10 190,530.00 26.50 193,450.00 30.13 219,949.00

Luxa Construction 

APPROXIMATE 

QUANTITY

Bidders 1-5

Navarro Enterprise 
Construction U.S. ASPHALT CO. Swain Const. Co. Carley Construction, LLC

Engineers' Estimate:    $480,292.50
Amount of Bid Bond:    $24,020.00

CG\L\ENGINEERING\PROJECTS\TABS\SCHOOLS\BRYAN ELEMENTARY
LAMP, RYNEARSON  ASSOCIATES, INC., 14710 WEST DODGE ROAD, SUITE 100, OMAHA, NE

89



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS-BRYAN ELEMENTARY
PARKING LOT
LRA JOB NO. 0108049.01-021
ENGINEER: SCOTT OSWALD/SCOTT LOOS
BID DATE 03/03/09
PAGE 2 OF 8

ITEM 

NO. DESCRIPTION

UNIT 

PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

Luxa Construction 

APPROXIMATE 

QUANTITY

Bidders 1-5

Navarro Enterprise 
Construction U.S. ASPHALT CO. Swain Const. Co. Carley Construction, LLC

16
CONSTRUCT 4" PC CONCRETE 
SIDEWALK 11,500 SF 2.35 27,025.00 2.55 29,325.00 2.64 30,360.00 2.80 32,200.00 3.21 36,915.00

17
CONSTRUCT SINGLE BASIN 
GRATE INLET - TYPE SC 1 EA 2,400.00 2,400.00 2,350.00 2,350.00 2,568.00 2,568.00 2,415.00 2,415.00 2,300.00 2,300.00

18
CONSTRUCT 10" STORM SEWER 
PIPE 100 LF 30.00 3,000.00 27.30 2,730.00 25.69 2,569.00 29.40 2,940.00 16.21 1,621.00

19
CONSTRUCT 10" FLARED END 
SECTION 1 EA 325.00 325.00 329.00 329.00 233.00 233.00 315.00 315.00 582.00 582.00

20 CONSTRUCT 10" PIPE BEDDING 100 LF 10.00 1,000.00 1.05 105.00 3.73 373.00 5.25 525.00 3.22 322.00

21
CONSTRUCT 12" STORM SEWER 
PIPE 50 LF 45.00 2,250.00 29.80 1,490.00 28.05 1,402.50 36.75 1,837.50 21.70 1,085.00

22 CONSTRUCT 12" PIPE BEDDING 50 LF 12.00 600.00 1.05 52.50 4.38 219.00 6.85 342.50 3.14 157.00

23
CONSTRUCT 24" BEEHIVE 
GRATE INLET 1 EA 2,300.00 2,300.00 718.00 718.00 1,745.00 1,745.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 1,130.00 1,130.00

24
TAP AREA INLET WITH 6" TO 12" 
STORM SEWER 1 EA 1,200.00 1,200.00 533.00 533.00 312.00 312.00 945.00 945.00 640.00 640.00

25
STABILIZE TRENCH WITH 
CRUSHED LIMESTONE 10 TN 30.00 300.00 21.00 210.00 16.51 165.10 52.50 525.00 38.40 384.00

26
CONSTRUCT 48" CHAIN LINK 
FENCE 235 LF 10.00 2,350.00 16.70 3,924.50 19.01 4,467.35 17.85 4,194.75 17.60 4,136.00

27
CONSTRUCT DOUBLE-SWING 
GATE 1 LS 2,900.00 2,900.00 1,724.00 1,724.00 560.00 560.00 2,730.00 2,730.00 1,815.00 1,815.00

28

INSTALL BASKETBALL 
GOAL/BACKBOARD WITH 
FOOTING 2 EA 900.00 1,800.00 522.00 1,044.00 1,362.00 2,724.00 500.00 1,000.00 260.00 520.00

29 CONSTRUCT FLAG POLE 1 EA 2,616.50 2,616.50 3,113.00 3,113.00 3,797.00 3,797.00 2,600.00 2,600.00 2,616.00 2,616.00

Engineers' Estimate:    $480,292.50
Amount of Bid Bond:    $24,020.00

CG\L\ENGINEERING\PROJECTS\TABS\SCHOOLS\BRYAN ELEMENTARY
LAMP, RYNEARSON  ASSOCIATES, INC., 14710 WEST DODGE ROAD, SUITE 100, OMAHA, NE

90



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS-BRYAN ELEMENTARY
PARKING LOT
LRA JOB NO. 0108049.01-021
ENGINEER: SCOTT OSWALD/SCOTT LOOS
BID DATE 03/03/09
PAGE 3 OF 8

ITEM 

NO. DESCRIPTION

UNIT 

PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

Luxa Construction 

APPROXIMATE 

QUANTITY

Bidders 1-5

Navarro Enterprise 
Construction U.S. ASPHALT CO. Swain Const. Co. Carley Construction, LLC

30

CONSTRUCT PERMANENT 
PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKING - 
4" YELLOW 3,250 LF 0.36 1,170.00 0.17 552.50 0.36 1,170.00 0.55 1,787.50 0.36 1,170.00

31

CONSTRUCT PERMANENT 
PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKING - 
12" WHITE 40 LF 3.30 132.00 0.74 29.60 3.36 134.40 2.08 83.20 3.30 132.00

32

CONSTRUCT PERMANENT 
PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKING - 
24" WHITE 200 LF 2.59 518.00 1.10 220.00 2.63 526.00 2.35 470.00 2.59 518.00

33

CONSTRUCT PERMANENT 
PAINTED CURB PAVEMENT 
MARKING - RED 1,300 LF 0.83 1,079.00 0.48 624.00 0.84 1,092.00 1.18 1,534.00 0.83 1,079.00

34
CONSTRUCT HANDICAP 
MARKING AND SIGNAGE 1 LS 1,083.50 1,083.50 532.00 532.00 1,100.00 1,100.00 1,180.00 1,180.00 1,083.00 1,083.00

35

CONSTRUCT PREFORMED 
PAVEMENT MARKING TAPE 
MARKING SYMBOL 7 EA 247.50 1,732.50 357.00 2,499.00 251.22 1,758.54 345.00 2,415.00 247.00 1,729.00

36 CONSTRUCT SIGN 6 EA 192.50 1,155.00 104.00 624.00 195.39 1,172.34 109.25 655.50 192.00 1,152.00

37
CONSTRUCT STORM DRAIN 
INLET PROTECTION 3 EA 221.83 665.49 104.00 312.00 111.65 334.95 157.50 472.50 110.00 330.00

38 CONSTRUCT SILT FENCE 1,000 LF 2.04 2,040.00 2.10 2,100.00 2.18 2,180.00 3.05 3,050.00 2.20 2,200.00
39 REMOVE SILT FENCE 1,000 LF 0.50 500.00 0.52 520.00 0.56 560.00 0.63 630.00 0.55 550.00
40 SEEDING - TYPE "A" 0.5 AC 3,354.00 1,677.00 2,037.00 1,018.50 2,264.00 1,132.00 3,570.00 1,785.00 2,145.00 1,072.50
41 SOD - BLUEGRASS 1,400 SY 2.25 3,150.00 2.20 3,080.00 2.34 3,276.00 3.57 4,998.00 2.31 3,234.00
42 SOD - PLANTATION FESCUE 550 SY 2.75 $1,512.50 3.15 $1,732.50 3.32 1,826.00 3.57 1,963.50 3.30 1,815.00
43 MULCH 275 CF 1.21 332.75 2.85 783.75 3.07 844.25 3.05 838.75 3.00 825.00
44 RED BUD TREE 5 EA 253.00 1,265.00 225.00 1,125.00 240.05 1,200.25 308.00 1,540.00 236.00 1,180.00
45 RED MAPLE TREE 2 EA 379.50 759.00 261.00 522.00 279.13 558.26 305.00 610.00 275.00 550.00
46 PIN OAK TREE 2 EA 390.50 781.00 261.00 522.00 279.13 558.26 305.00 610.00 275.00 550.00

Engineers' Estimate:    $480,292.50
Amount of Bid Bond:    $24,020.00

CG\L\ENGINEERING\PROJECTS\TABS\SCHOOLS\BRYAN ELEMENTARY
LAMP, RYNEARSON  ASSOCIATES, INC., 14710 WEST DODGE ROAD, SUITE 100, OMAHA, NE

91



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS-BRYAN ELEMENTARY
PARKING LOT
LRA JOB NO. 0108049.01-021
ENGINEER: SCOTT OSWALD/SCOTT LOOS
BID DATE 03/03/09
PAGE 4 OF 8

ITEM 

NO. DESCRIPTION

UNIT 

PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

Luxa Construction 

APPROXIMATE 

QUANTITY

Bidders 1-5

Navarro Enterprise 
Construction U.S. ASPHALT CO. Swain Const. Co. Carley Construction, LLC

47 KOREAN LILAC TREE 1 EA 247.50 247.50 287.00 287.00 307.04 307.04 348.00 348.00 302.00 302.00

48
REMOVE AND RELOCATE 
MAPLE TREE 1 EA 231.00 231.00 183.00 183.00 195.00 195.00 475.00 475.00 192.00 192.00

49
CONSTRUCT STABILIZED 
CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 1 EA 1,800.00 1,800.00 1,263.00 1,263.00 1,940.00 1,940.00 1,050.00 1,050.00 1,717.00 1,717.00

50
CONSTRUCT TYPE II 
BARRICADE AND BARRELS 555 BD 1.49 826.95 0.52 288.60 1.64 910.20 0.58 321.90 1.50 832.50

51
CONSTRUCT IRRIGATION 
SYSTEM 1 LS 4,790.50 4,790.50 2,632.00 2,632.00 5,304.00 5,304.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 2,772.00 2,772.00

52 PARKING LOT LIGHTING 1 LS 43,697.50 43,697.50 41,498.00 41,498.00 48,385.00 48,385.00 41,725.00 41,725.00 43,695.00 43,695.00
ALTERNATE 1 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

53
CONSTRUCT 6" PERFORATED 
STORM SEWER PIPE 200 LF 16.00 3,200.00 12.90 2,580.00 12.04 2,408.00 15.75 3,150.00 24.06 4,812.00

54 AMENDED SOIL 140 CY 29.00 4,060.00 63.50 8,890.00 11.00 1,540.00 29.50 4,130.00 22.00 3,080.00
55 SEEDING - TYPE B - K-31 0.2 AC 3,832.40 766.48 1,985.00 397.00 2,217.00 443.40 4,000.00 800.00 2,090.00 418.00
56 ROLLED EROSION CONTROL, TYPE SC150BN140 SY 4.95 693.00 3.15 441.00 3.35 469.00 3.06 428.40 3.30 462.00

TOTAL BASE BID AMOUNT 

(ITEMS 1-52) $345,595.24 $375,594.30 $379,209.43 $383,349.10 $399,461.75
TOTAL ALTERNATE 1 BID 

AMOUNT (ITEMS 1-20, 24-41, 43-

56) 347,652.22$   383,909.30$   378,877.33$    385,714.00$   404,046.75$     

Engineers' Estimate:    $480,292.50
Amount of Bid Bond:    $24,020.00

CG\L\ENGINEERING\PROJECTS\TABS\SCHOOLS\BRYAN ELEMENTARY
LAMP, RYNEARSON  ASSOCIATES, INC., 14710 WEST DODGE ROAD, SUITE 100, OMAHA, NE

92



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS-BRYAN ELEMENTARY
PARKING LOT
LRA JOB NO. 0108049.01-021
ENGINEER: SCOTT OSWALD/SCOTT LOOS
BID DATE 03/03/09
PAGE 5 OF 8

ITEM 

NO. DESCRIPTION

UNIT 

PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

UNIT 

PRICE AMOUNT

1 CLEARING AND GRUBBING GENERAL 1 LS 1,894.50 1,894.50$         2,000.00$    2,000.00$               5,500.00$        5,500.00$                 37,800.00$      37,800.00$              -$               
2 GRADING AND SHAPING 1 LS 12,261.63 12,261.63 13,000.00 13,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 18,400.00 18,400.00 0.00
3 SAW CUT - FULL DEPTH 80 LF 8.12 649.60 10.00 800.00 15.00 1,200.00 4.00 320.00 0.00

4 REMOVE AND DISPOSE OF PAVEMENT 8,350 SY 3.16 26,386.00 3.30 27,555.00 3.75 31,312.50 6.80 56,780.00 0.00

5
REMOVE, SALVAGE AND REINSTALL 
CHAIN LINK FENCE & GATE 90 LF 24.44 2,199.60 26.00 2,340.00 16.90 1,521.00 15.50 1,395.00 0.00

6
REMOVE AND DISPOSE OF FLAG POLE 
& FOOTING 1 LS 886.21 886.21 500.00 500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 122.00 122.00 0.00

7
REMOVE, SALVAGE AND REINSTALL 
BENCH 6 EA 507.50 3,045.00 225.00 1,350.00 1,000.00 6,000.00 430.00 2,580.00 0.00

8
REMOVE, SALVAGE AND REINSTALL 
BICYCLE RACKS 1 LS 1,015.00 1,015.00 225.00 225.00 950.00 950.00 430.00 430.00 0.00

9

REMOVE AND DISPOSE OF 
BASKETBALL GOAL/BACKBOARD & 
FOOTING 4 EA 421.00 1,684.00 150.00 600.00 100.00 400.00 35.00 140.00 0.00

10 REMOVE AND SALVAGE SIGN 12 EA 101.50 1,218.00 50.00 600.00 50.00 600.00 15.00 180.00 0.00

11
REMOVE AND REPLACE FIBER OPTIC 
PULL BOX 1 EA 1,015.00 1,015.00 850.00 850.00 812.00 812.00 300.00 300.00 0.00

12
REMOVE AND REPLACE UNSUITABLE 
MATERIAL 200 CY 15.79 3,158.00 16.50 3,300.00 15.00 3,000.00 15.00 3,000.00 0.00

13 SUBGRADE PREPARATION 8,425 SY 1.26 10,615.50 1.35 11,373.75 2.50 21,062.50 2.00 16,850.00 0.00

14
CONSTRUCT 8" PC CONCRETE 
PAVEMENT 15 SY 32.36 485.40 36.00 540.00 50.00 750.00 55.00 825.00 0.00

15
CONSTRUCT 7" PC CONCRETE 
PAVEMENT 7,300 SY 28.64 209,072.00 30.00 219,000.00 31.50 229,950.00 31.75 231,775.00 0.00

16
CONSTRUCT 4" PC CONCRETE 
SIDEWALK 11,500 SF 2.77 31,855.00 3.00 34,500.00 3.20 36,800.00 4.25 48,875.00 0.00

APPROXIMATE 

QUANTITY

Bidders 6-9

M.E. Collins Contracting Co., Inc. Tab Const. Co.JR BARGER & SONS INC Dostals Const. Co. Inc.

2,200.00

3.157.00

10,640.78

209,092.63

31,882.17

Engineers' Estimate:    $480,292.50
Amount of Bid Bond:    $24,020.00

CG\L\ENGINEERING\PROJECTS\TABS\SCHOOLS\BRYAN ELEMENTARY
LAMP, RYNEARSON  ASSOCIATES, INC., 14710 WEST DODGE ROAD, SUITE 100, OMAHA, NE

93



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS-BRYAN ELEMENTARY
PARKING LOT
LRA JOB NO. 0108049.01-021
ENGINEER: SCOTT OSWALD/SCOTT LOOS
BID DATE 03/03/09
PAGE 6 OF 8

ITEM 

NO. DESCRIPTION

UNIT 

PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

UNIT 

PRICE AMOUNT

APPROXIMATE 

QUANTITY

Bidders 6-9

M.E. Collins Contracting Co., Inc. Tab Const. Co.JR BARGER & SONS INC Dostals Const. Co. Inc.

17
CONSTRUCT SINGLE BASIN GRATE 
INLET - TYPE SC 1 EA 2,420.75 2,420.75 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,142.00 2,142.00 0.00

18 CONSTRUCT 10" STORM SEWER PIPE 100 LF 29.47 2,947.00 31.00 3,100.00 15.00 1,500.00 20.00 2,000.00 0.00

19 CONSTRUCT 10" FLARED END SECTION 1 EA 315.75 315.75 330.00 330.00 700.00 700.00 210.00 210.00 0.00

20 CONSTRUCT 10" PIPE BEDDING 100 LF 5.26 526.00 5.50 550.00 5.70 570.00 4.00 400.00 0.00

21 CONSTRUCT 12" STORM SEWER PIPE 50 LF 36.84 1,842.00 38.50 1,925.00 17.50 875.00 20.00 1,000.00 0.00

22 CONSTRUCT 12" PIPE BEDDING 50 LF 6.84 342.00 7.50 375.00 6.50 325.00 6.00 300.00 0.00

23 CONSTRUCT 24" BEEHIVE GRATE INLET 1 EA 1,999.75 1,999.75 2,100.00 2,100.00 2,100.00 2,100.00 2,098.00 2,098.00 0.00

24
TAP AREA INLET WITH 6" TO 12" STORM 
SEWER 1 EA 947.25 947.25 1,000.00 1,000.00 265.00 265.00 205.00 205.00 0.00

25
STABILIZE TRENCH WITH CRUSHED 
LIMESTONE 10 TN 52.63 526.30 60.00 600.00 21.00 210.00 27.00 270.00 0.00

26 CONSTRUCT 48" CHAIN LINK FENCE 235 LF 14.04 3,299.40 14.00 3,290.00 18.20 4,277.00 19.00 4,465.00 0.00

27 CONSTRUCT DOUBLE-SWING GATE 1 LS 1,100.00 1,100.00 2,200.00 2,200.00 1,602.00 1,602.00 2,100.00 2,100.00 0.00

28
INSTALL BASKETBALL 
GOAL/BACKBOARD WITH FOOTING 2 EA 2,030.00 4,060.00 500.00 1,000.00 2,500.00 5,000.00 615.00 1,230.00 0.00

29 CONSTRUCT FLAG POLE 1 EA 2,030.00 2,030.00 2,750.00 2,750.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 2,560.00 2,560.00 0.00

30
CONSTRUCT PERMANENT PAINTED 
PAVEMENT MARKING - 4" YELLOW 3,250 LF 0.79 2,567.50 0.50 1,625.00 0.35 1,137.50 0.40 1,300.00 0.00

31
CONSTRUCT PERMANENT PAINTED 
PAVEMENT MARKING - 12" WHITE 40 LF 1.66 66.40 3.50 140.00 3.20 128.00 3.70 148.00 0.00

1841.88

526.25

3300.00

2,568.80

66.56

2,500.00

Engineers' Estimate:    $480,292.50
Amount of Bid Bond:    $24,020.00

CG\L\ENGINEERING\PROJECTS\TABS\SCHOOLS\BRYAN ELEMENTARY
LAMP, RYNEARSON  ASSOCIATES, INC., 14710 WEST DODGE ROAD, SUITE 100, OMAHA, NE

94



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS-BRYAN ELEMENTARY
PARKING LOT
LRA JOB NO. 0108049.01-021
ENGINEER: SCOTT OSWALD/SCOTT LOOS
BID DATE 03/03/09
PAGE 7 OF 8

ITEM 

NO. DESCRIPTION

UNIT 

PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

UNIT 

PRICE AMOUNT

APPROXIMATE 

QUANTITY

Bidders 6-9

M.E. Collins Contracting Co., Inc. Tab Const. Co.JR BARGER & SONS INC Dostals Const. Co. Inc.

32
CONSTRUCT PERMANENT PAINTED 
PAVEMENT MARKING - 24" WHITE 200 LF 2.60 520.00 2.50 500.00 2.51 502.00 2.90 580.00 0.00

33
CONSTRUCT PERMANENT PAINTED 
CURB PAVEMENT MARKING - RED 1,300 LF 0.92 1,196.00 1.00 1,300.00 0.80 1,040.00 1.00 1,300.00 0.00

34
CONSTRUCT HANDICAP MARKING AND 
SIGNAGE 1 LS 665.60 665.60 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,052.00 1,052.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 0.00

35
CONSTRUCT PREFORMED PAVEMENT 
MARKING TAPE MARKING SYMBOL 7 EA 118.56 829.92 250.00 1,750.00 240.00 1,680.00 275.00 1,925.00 0.00

36 CONSTRUCT SIGN 6 EA 166.40 998.40 200.00 1,200.00 187.00 1,122.00 267.00 1,602.00 0.00

37
CONSTRUCT STORM DRAIN INLET 
PROTECTION 3 EA 315.75 947.25 70.00 210.00 230.00 690.00 265.00 795.00 0.00

38 CONSTRUCT SILT FENCE 1,000 LF 3.16 3,160.00 2.85 2,850.00 2.10 2,100.00 2.40 2,400.00 0.00

39 REMOVE SILT FENCE 1,000 LF 1.58 1,580.00 0.85 850.00 0.50 500.00 0.50 500.00 0.00

40 SEEDING - TYPE "A" 0.5 AC 2,028.00 1,014.00 2,000.00 1,000.00 2,083.00 1,041.50 2,300.00 1,150.00 0.00

41 SOD - BLUEGRASS 1,400 SY 2.18 3,052.00 2.35 3,290.00 3.80 5,320.00 6.00 8,400.00 0.00

42 SOD - PLANTATION FESCUE 550 SY 3.12 1,716.00 2.35 1,292.50 3.90 2,145.00 6.15 3,382.50 0.00

43 MULCH 275 CF 2.87 789.25 2.00 550.00 1.20 330.00 2.45 673.75 0.00
44 RED BUD TREE 5 EA 223.60 1,118.00 250.00 1,250.00 246.00 1,230.00 344.00 1,720.00 0.00
45 RED MAPLE TREE 2 EA 260.00 520.00 375.00 750.00 369.00 738.00 417.00 834.00 0.00
46 PIN OAK TREE 2 EA 260.00 520.00 360.00 720.00 379.00 758.00 400.00 800.00 0.00

1,189.76

3,157.50

1,578.75

3,057.60

786.50

552.35

Engineers' Estimate:    $480,292.50
Amount of Bid Bond:    $24,020.00

CG\L\ENGINEERING\PROJECTS\TABS\SCHOOLS\BRYAN ELEMENTARY
LAMP, RYNEARSON  ASSOCIATES, INC., 14710 WEST DODGE ROAD, SUITE 100, OMAHA, NE

95



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS-BRYAN ELEMENTARY
PARKING LOT
LRA JOB NO. 0108049.01-021
ENGINEER: SCOTT OSWALD/SCOTT LOOS
BID DATE 03/03/09
PAGE 8 OF 8

ITEM 

NO. DESCRIPTION

UNIT 

PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

UNIT 

PRICE AMOUNT

APPROXIMATE 

QUANTITY

Bidders 6-9

M.E. Collins Contracting Co., Inc. Tab Const. Co.JR BARGER & SONS INC Dostals Const. Co. Inc.

47 KOREAN LILAC TREE 1 EA 286.00 286.00 360.00 360.00 240.00 240.00 360.00 360.00 0.00

48 REMOVE AND RELOCATE MAPLE TREE 1 EA 182.00 182.00 360.00 360.00 224.00 224.00 390.00 390.00 0.00

49
CONSTRUCT STABILIZED 
CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 1 EA 1,052.50 1,052.50 1,500.00 1,500.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 2,560.00 2,560.00 0.00

50
CONSTRUCT TYPE II BARRICADE AND 
BARRELS 555 BD 1.56 865.80 1.50 832.50 1.44 799.20 1.70 943.50 0.00

51 CONSTRUCT IRRIGATION SYSTEM 1 LS 2,912.00 2,912.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,739.00 3,739.00 3,090.00 3,090.00 0.00
52 PARKING LOT LIGHTING 1 LS 48,840.48 48,840.48 44,000.00 44,000.00 42,434.00 42,434.00 44,000.00 44,000.00 0.00

ALTERNATE 1 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

53
CONSTRUCT 6" PERFORATED STORM 
SEWER PIPE 200 LF 15.79 3,158.00 10.00 2,000.00 15.60 3,120.00 8.00 1,600.00 0.00

54 AMENDED SOIL 140 CY 29.47 4,125.80 20.00 2,800.00 52.20 7,308.00 35.00 4,900.00 0.00
55 SEEDING - TYPE B - K-31 0.2 AC 1,976.00 395.20 3,000.00 600.00 2,029.60 405.92 2,330.00 466.00 0.00
56 ROLLED EROSION CONTROL, TYPE SC150BN 140 SY 3.12 436.80 2.20 308.00 2.70 378.00 3.00 420.00 0.00

TOTAL BASE BID AMOUNT (ITEMS 1-52) $405,195.74 $410,583.75 $449,732.20 $518,805.75 $0.00

TOTAL ALTERNATE 1 BID AMOUNT 

(ITEMS 1-20, 24-41, 43-56) 407,411.79$     410,599.25$           455,499.12$             519,411.25$            -$               

3,157.50

404,141.93

$406,357.54

409,123.60

$410,431.60

Engineers' Estimate:    $480,292.50
Amount of Bid Bond:    $24,020.00

CG\L\ENGINEERING\PROJECTS\TABS\SCHOOLS\BRYAN ELEMENTARY
LAMP, RYNEARSON  ASSOCIATES, INC., 14710 WEST DODGE ROAD, SUITE 100, OMAHA, NE

96



AGENDA ITEM: Administrator Recommended for Hire

MEETING DATE: March 16, 2009

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

TITLE & DESCRIPTION: Elementary School Principal, Disney Elementary School

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: The position was advertised in the Omaha World Herald, on the NASB
website, and in Millard’s job postings. Nineteen applications were
received (sixteen from outside the district and three from within the
district.) The applications were reviewed by Dr. Kirby Eltiste, Dr. Jim
Sutfin, and Dr. Keith Lutz. Two applicants from within the district and
four applicants from outside the district were selected to interview for
the position. The interview teams included Dr. Kirby Eltiste, Dr. Keith
Lutz, Dr. Carol Newton, Angelo Passarelli, Jeanine Beaudin, Dr. Jim
Sutfin, Kevin Chick, Kara Hutton, Claudia Schulte, Susan Kelley,
Cindy Chevalier, Paul Schulte, Sandra Havens(Parent), Alisha
Bollinger, Kim Brummer, and Stacey Ocander. I am recommending
the following individual for the position:

Bethany Case Recommended for the Elementary School Principal at Disney
Elementary School. Bethany is currently the Primary Elementary
Principal K-2 for Smithville R-II School District in Smithville, MO.
From 2004-2006 she was Early Year Principal and Elementary
Assistant Principal for Cameron R-I Public Schools in Cameron, MO.
From 1998-2004 She was an elementary teacher for grades 2-6 at St.
Joseph School District, St. Joseph, MO.

Education: Bachelor’s Degree from Peru State College in 1997 and a Masters
Degree from Baker University, Baldwin City, KS in 2002.

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

PERSON RECOMMENDING: Dr. Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: _______________________________________

97

sphelps
New Stamp



AGENDA ITEM: Administrator Recommended for Hire

MEETING DATE: March 16, 2009

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

TITLE & DESCRIPTION: Elementary School Principal, Norris Elementary School

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: The position was advertised in the Omaha World Herald, on the NASB
website, and in Millard’s job postings. Nineteen applications were
received (sixteen from outside the district and three from within the
district.) The applications were reviewed by Dr. Kirby Eltiste, Dr. Jim
Sutfin, and Dr. Keith Lutz. Two applicants from within the district and
four applicants from outside the district were selected to interview for
the position. The interview teams included Dr. Kirby Eltiste, Dr. Keith
Lutz, Dr. Carol Newton, Angelo Passarelli, Jeanine Beaudin, Dr. Jim
Sutfin, Kevin Chick, Kara Hutton, Claudia Schulte, Susan Kelley,
Cindy Chevalier, Paul Schulte, Sandra Havens(Parent), Alisha
Bollinger, Kim Brummer, and Stacey Ocander. I am recommending
the following individual for the position:

Joycilyn Rozelle Recommended for the Elementary School Principal at Norris
Elementary School. Joycilyn is currently a Principal for Bedminster
Township School District, Bedminster, NJ. From 2004-2006 she was a
Principal for Francis Howell Board of Education, St. Charles, MO. She
was an Assistant Principal for Fulton County School District in Atlanta,
GA from 2001-2004 and for Pattonville School District, St. Louis, MO
from 1998-2001. From 1990-1998 she was a language arts/reading
teacher for Pattonville School District, St. Louis, MO.

Education: Bachelor’s Degree from the University of MO, St. Louis in 1990 and a
Masters in 1995. She is currently pursuing an Educational Specialist
Degree in Administration from Lindenwood University, St. Charles,
MO.

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

PERSON RECOMMENDING: Dr. Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: _______________________________________

98

sphelps
New Stamp



AGENDA ITEM: Administrator Recommended for Hire

MEETING DATE: March 16, 2009

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

TITLE & DESCRIPTION: Assistant Principal/Athletics and Activities Director at West High
School

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: The position was advertised in the Omaha World Herald, NCSA, and in
Millard’s job postings. Twenty-three applications were received
(twenty-one from outside the district and two from within the district).
The applications were reviewed by Dr. Kirby Eltiste, Dr. Jim Sutfin,
Greg Tiemann, and Craig Whaley One applicant from within the
district and three from outside the district were selected to interview for
the position. The interview teams included Dr. Kirby Eltiste, Dr. Jim
Sutfin, Craig Whaley, Nolan Beyer, Kevin Chick, Scott Butler, Rex
Barker, Mark Hauptman (Parent), Belinda Vacanti (Parent), Anna
Meier (Student), Charlie Viers (Student), Tracy Stauffer, Fred
Robertson, Stacy Longacre, Greg Tiemann. Dr. Lutz conducted a final
interview with the recommended candidate. I am recommending the
following individual for the position.

Rick Hook Recommended for Assistant Principal/Athletics and Activities Director
at West High School. He is currently a teacher and assistant athletic
director at West High School. Rick has been with Millard Public
Schools since 1984. Prior to that, he taught in Grand Island, NE from
1979 to 1984.

Education: Bachelor’s degree from Kearney State in 1979 and Masters in
Educational Leadership from Doane in 2006.

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

PERSON RECOMMENDING: Dr. Jim Sutfin

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: _______________________________________________

99

sphelps
New Stamp



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: March 16, 2009

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: Personnel items: (1) Hires; (2) Resignations; (3) Leave of
Absence; and (4) Contract Amendment

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: NA

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION
OR REJECTION: N/A

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Dr. Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: __________________________________

100

sphelps
New Stamp



March 16, 2009

AMENDMENT TO CONTINUING CONTRACTS

Recommend: amendment to the following contracts:

1. Pamela Fleury – Vocal Music teacher at Kiewit Middle School. Amend contract to
100%. (She is currently 60% Vocal Music teacher at Kiewit.)

101



March 16, 2009

LEAVE OF ABSENCE REQUESTS

Recommend: the following extended leave without pay requests be approved:

1. Carol Carpenter – Math teacher at South High School—currently on LOA. She is
requesting a 2nd year Leave of Absence for the 2009/2010 school year to continue
her education.

102



March 16, 2009

RESIGNATIONS

Recommend: the following resignations be accepted:

1. Deborah Catalano – READ/Instructional Facilitator at Cottonwood Elementary School.
She is resigning at the end of the 2008/2009 school year due to relocation.

2. Kelli Lewis – Media Specialist at Sandoz Elementary School. She is resigning at the end
of the 2008/2009 school year due to relocation.

103



March 16, 2009

TEACHERS RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE

Recommend: the following teachers be hired for the 2009/2010 school year:

1. John Spehn – BA – University of Nebraska at Lincoln. Science teacher at Central Middle
School.

2. Bailey Heafer – BA – Doane College. Math teacher at South High School.
3. Cory Korselman – BA – Central College. Special Ed Resource teacher at Cody

Elementary School. Previous Exp: Champaign, IL (2006/2008); Urbana, IL (2006);
Knoxville, IA (2002/2005).

104



 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Legislative Update 
 
MEETING DATE: March 16, 2009 
 
DEPARTMENT: Office of the Superintendent    
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Legislative Update for the 101st Legislature. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: APPROVAL          DISCUSSION          INFORMATION ONLY   XX      
 
Hearings 
Hearings are continuing.  We are preparing for the hearing on LB 240 (March 17, 65% in classroom) and LB 
521 (March 26, restore core service funding).   
 
Senator Adams is working with the Governor and with Senator Heidemann to determine how the Federal 
Stimulus dollars fit into state aid funding for the next 2-4 years.  It appears that years three and four are 
problematic.  They are trying to avoid the cliff effect if the Federal funding is gone in two years.     
 
Learning Community Bills 
LB 62 (Adams) Change enrollment option program provisions (signed by the governor). 
http://www.unicam.state.ne.us/FloorDocs/Current/PDF/Intro/LB62.pdf 
LB 387 (Gay) Eliminate certain taxing authority of learning communities and change state aid 
calculations (killed in committee). 
http://www.unicam.state.ne.us/FloorDocs/Current/PDF/Intro/LB387.pdf 
LB 391 (Adams) Change the manner of distribution of tax revenue within learning communities 
http://www.unicam.state.ne.us/FloorDocs/Current/PDF/Intro/LB391.pdf 
LB 392 (Adams) Change provisions relating to learning communities 
http://www.unicam.state.ne.us/FloorDocs/Current/PDF/Intro/LB392.pdf 
LB 418 (Price) Require valuation changes by the Tax Equalization and Review Commission among 
counties which have learning communities 
http://www.unicam.state.ne.us/FloorDocs/Current/PDF/Intro/LB418.pdf 
LB 521 (Pankonin) Provide additional tax levy authority for learning communities 
http://www.unicam.state.ne.us/FloorDocs/Current/PDF/Intro/LB521.pdf 
LB 534 (Price change provisions relating to learning community diversity plans (killed in committee). 
http://www.unicam.state.ne.us/FloorDocs/Current/PDF/Intro/LB534.pdf 
LB 597 (Ashford) Change provisions relating to collaborative focus schools and programs and magnet schools 
http://www.unicam.state.ne.us/FloorDocs/Current/PDF/Intro/LB597.pdf 
 
ESU Bills 
LB 22 (Friend) Change tax levy authority of educational service units and school districts 
http://www.unicam.state.ne.us/FloorDocs/Current/PDF/Intro/LB22.pdf  
LB 281 (Mello) Change educational service unit board membership provisions 
http://www.unicam.state.ne.us/FloorDocs/Current/PDF/Intro/LB281.pdf 
LB 521 (Pankonin) Provide additional tax levy authority for learning communities 
http://www.unicam.state.ne.us/FloorDocs/Current/PDF/Intro/LB521.pdf 

105



 
Funding Bills 
LB 545 (Adams) Change the Tax Equity and Educational Opportunities Support Act 
http://www.unicam.state.ne.us/FloorDocs/Current/PDF/Intro/LB545.pdf 
 
National Issues 
We are still awaiting word on how the stimulus funds will impact state aid.  We have encouraging signs but no 
details at the time of this report.   

    
 

 
STRATEGIC PLAN:  Implemented Strategies and Superintendent’s Goals 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON:  Angelo Passarelli 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:                                                                  
        (Signature) 
 
 

106

sphelps
New Stamp



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Report of Nutrition & Wellness Committee 
 
MEETING DATE: March 16, 2009 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Report of Nutrition & Wellness Committee – a report on the meetings held by the 

District’s required Nutrition and Wellness Committee 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval              Discussion             Information Only     x                                 .       
 
BACKGROUND: Under the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) regulations, any 

school district that participates in the Child Nutrition Program (i.e., the school 
breakfast and lunch programs) must have a Nutrition & Wellness Committee. 

 
 This Committee is required to meet at least once annually.  Its membership must 

include parents, students, administrators, board representatives, and food service 
representatives. 

 
 Attached are the minutes of this year’s meetings of the District’s Nutrition & 

Wellness Committee. 
 
  
 
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: n/a 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: n/a 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

125

sphelps
New Stamp



Minutes 
Nutrition & Wellness Committee 

February 24, 2009 
 
The Millard Public Schools Nutrition & Wellness Committee met on February 24, 2009 at 4:00 
p.m. at Room A of the Don Stroh Administration Center (DSAC).  Committee members in 
attendance at the meeting were as follows: 
 

 
Committee Members 

 
Parent 

 
Student 

Board 
Rep. 

Admin 
 Staff 

District 
Patron 

Food 
Service 

 
Attendance 

Ken Fossen, Assoc. Supt.    x x x Present 
Rose Barta, K-12 PE    x x  Present 
Diane Araujo, 6-12 HE    x x  Present 
Nancy Thornblad, K-5 HE    x x  Present 
Lori Jasa, KMS Prin.    x x  Present 
Brian Begley, MNHS Prin.  x  x   Present 
Kevin Chick, Norris Prin.    x   Present 
Susan Kelley, Willowdale Prin.    x x  Present 
Jeff Edwards, FS Gen. Mgr. x    x x Present 
Bob Snowden, Sodexo Gen.Mgr.     x x Present 
Gary Steiner, MPS Foundation       Absent 
Maurice Green (MNHS)  x x    Present 
Brittney Albin (MSHS)  x x    Absent 
Emily Nowell (MWHS)  x x    Absent 
Laure Grant (Parent) x    x  Present 
Melodie McNee (Parent) x    x  Present 
Pam Burklund(Parent) x    x  Present 
Emma Briese (Parent) x    x  Present 
Julie Oeltjen(Parent) x    x  Present 

 
Ken Fossen gave some background information to all members.  He also summarized the work of 
the committee in the past.  Such summary included the five contributing factors previous 
committee members had discussed with regard to student (and adult) lack of health and wellness 
(especially, obesity):  (1) genetic factors, (2) poor nutrition, (3) lack of exercise, (4) insufficient 
sleep, and (5) stress. 
 
All members then introduced themselves. 
 
Following the introductions, Bob Snowden and Jeff  Edwards gave an overview of the District’s 
food service program.  The current District policies with regard to its “nutrition based” program 
were discussed.  Bob and Jeff then responded to questions and comments from other members. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:45 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Kenneth J. Fossen, J.D. 
Associate Superintendent 
General Administration 

126



Minutes 
Nutrition & Wellness Committee 

March 4, 2009 
 
The Millard Public Schools Nutrition & Wellness Committee met on March 4, 2009 at 4:00 p.m. 
at Room A of the Don Stroh Administration Center (DSAC).  Committee members in attendance 
at the meeting were as follows: 

 
Committee Members 

 
Parent 

 
Student 

Board 
Rep. 

Admin 
 Staff 

District 
Patron 

Food 
Service 

 
Attendance 

Ken Fossen, Assoc. Supt.    x x x Present 
Rose Barta, K-12 PE    x x  Present 
Diane Araujo, 6-12 HE    x x  Present 
Nancy Thornblad, K-5 HE    x x  Present 
Lori Jasa, KMS Prin.    x x  Present 
Brian Begley, MNHS Prin.  x  x   Absent 
Kevin Chick, Norris Prin.    x   Present 
Susan Kelley, Willowdale Prin.    x x  Present 
Jeff Edwards, FS Gen. Mgr. x    x x Present 
Bob Snowden, Sodexo Gen.Mgr.     x x Absent 
Gary Steiner, MPS Foundation       Absent 
Maurice Green (MNHS)  x x    Absent 
Brittney Albin (MSHS)  x x    Absent 
Emily Nowell (MWHS)  x x    Absent 
Laure Grant (Parent) x    x  Present 
Melodie McNee (Parent) x    x  Present 
Pam Burklund(Parent) x    x  Present 
Emma Briese (Parent) x    x  Absent 
Julie Oeltjen(Parent) x    x  Present 

 
Nancy Thorblad and Diane Araujo presented an overview of the District’s K-12 health 
curriculum and program.  Rose Barta presented an overview of the District’s K-12 physical 
education program. 
 
There was discussion among committee members.  Much of the discussion centered around issues 
related to gaps in regular exercise for some students, especially those at the secondary level. 
 
Discussion was then had with regard to any policy changes or recommendations the committee 
felt should be noted.  After discussion, the committee reached consensus on the following 
recommendations:  (1) that the District’s food service program should continue with its “nutrition 
based” focus; (2) that committees working on health, PE, and related areas should continue or  
increase their focus on educating (and communicating to) everyone about the need for and 
benefits of good nutrition and wellness; and (3) that the PE curricular team should evaluate 
possible ways to ensure that all students get regular exercise and have the opportunity to make 
exercise a part of their lifestyle. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:50 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Kenneth J. Fossen, J.D. 
Associate Superintendent 
General Administration 

127


	Board Packet March 16, 2009
	Agenda
	Administrative Memorandum
	E.1. Board Minutes March 2, 2009
	Financials
	H.1. Approval to Enter into Collective Bargaining Negotiations with the Millard Education Association for Nurses 2009-2010
	H.2. Appointment of Negotiation Team for Nurses Contract
	H.3. Approval to Enter into Collective Bargaining Negotiations with the Educational Paraprofessional Association of Millard
	H.4. Appointment of Negotiation Team for Paraprofessional Contract
	H.5. Approval of Job Description 2100.19 - Director of Human Resources
	Job Description 2100.19
	H.6. Award Contract for Cather Carpeting
	H.7. Award Contract for Bryan Paving Project
	H.8. Administrators for Hire - Disney Elementary
	Norris Principal
	Assistant Principal/Athletics and Activities Director at Millard West High School
	H.9. Approval of Personnel Actions: Amendment to Continuing Contract(s), Leave(s) of Absence, Resignation(s), and New Hires
	Amendment to Continuing Contracts
	Leave of Absence Request
	Resignations
	New Hires
	I.1. Legislative Update
	I.2. Nutrition and Wellness Committee Report



